
 

Historic Preservation Commission  

 
Members: 
Dr. Stephen Gibson – Chairperson 
Ms. Suzanne Wright – Vice Chairperson 
Mr. Tim Hoffman – Secretary 
Mr. Larry Jackson 
Mr. Chris Myers 
Dr. Michael Garrett 
Lincoln Wilkins. Jr. PhD 
Councilwoman Laurie Marchini 
Staff Liaison: Kathy McKenney, Historic Planner/Preservation Coordinator 
 

  
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

AGENDA  

Historic Preservation Commission 

Cumberland City Hall, Council Chambers 

 

DATE:    April 14, 2021 

TIME:     4:00 PM 

 

Public Notice:  

The Cumberland Historic Preservation Commission will meet virtually on April 14th at 4pm.  The 

meeting will now be held on the WebEx platform instead of Zoom.  A copy of the meeting agenda has 

been attached.  In addition to accessing the meeting virtually through WebEx, it can also be viewed on the 

City of Cumberland's website at the following link: http://www.ci.cumberland.md.us/633/Historic-

Preservation-Commission-Live-Me 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Review of the meeting minutes from the March 10, 2021 Historic Preservation Commission 

meeting as prepared by Debbie Helmstetter, Codes Technician.  

PUBLIC COMMENT 

CERTIFICATES OF APPROPRIATENESS – CONSENT AGENDA 

2. 217 North Mechanic Street – RCA21-000004 – relocation of the playground for Humpty Dumpty 

along with a ramp that will provide access, Jane Belt, applicant 

CERTIFICATES OF APPROPRIATENESS  

3. 222 Washington Street – COA21-000006 – Request to replace porch components, including, 

railings, balustrade, and spindles to appear closer to evidence from a 1920s postcard.  Porch roof 

is to be repaired, along with soffit and fascia, Ray Beall, applicant 

4. 66-72 Pershing Street – RCA21-000003 – Request for a Change Amendment to COA #870 to 

install new signage and to review “after the fact” window replacement on the second floor of the 



back of the structure (facing Merchants Alley), Christopher Hendershot (CG Enterprises LLC) 

applicant. 

TAX INCENTIVE APPLICATION REVIEW 

5. 66-72 Pershing Street – Part 2 application review for the purposes of obtaining a recommendation 

for real estate property tax credits as well as a property tax assessment freeze, CB Enterprises, 

LLC, applicants 

OTHER BUSINESS 

6. Staff/Chairperson Updates 

7. Discussions of May 2021 Historic Preservation Virtual Summit . Ongoing Discussion and 

Planning 

8. Administrative Approvals Report: 506 Washington Street, replacement of broken window glass, 

Laura McElhaney, applicant. 

ADJOURNMENT  

 
If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact the Department of Community Development at  

(301) 759-6431 or (301) 759-6442. 

Applicants or their appointed representatives must be present at the meeting for a review to take place. Please 

remember to turn off or silence all electronic devices prior to entering the meeting. 



File Attachments for Item:

1. Review of the meeting minutes from the March 10, 2021 Historic Preservation Commission meeting as

prepared by Debbie Helmstetter, Codes Technician. 



 

 

MINUTES 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

March 10, 2021 

Virtual WebEx Meeting 

 

 The Cumberland Historic Preservation Commission held its regular meeting on 

Wednesday, March 10, 2021 at 4:00 p.m., via a virtual Webex meeting.  Members 

present were Chairperson Dr. Stephen Gibson, Ms. Suzanne Wright, Mr. Chris Myers, 

Mr. Tim Hoffman, Dr. Lincoln Wilkins Jr., Mr. Larry Jackson, Councilwoman Laurie 

Marchini and Dr. Michael Garrett.  

 Others in attendance were Kathy McKenney, Historic Planner/Preservation 

Coordinator, Debbie Helmstetter, Code Technician, Melinda Kelleher, DDC Executive 

Director, Mr. Mike Fetchero, Allegany Museum and Ambra Hostetler, Kenney Signs, 

representing Four Axes. 

  Chairperson, Dr. Stephen Gibson, called the meeting to order.  He read the 

following statement into the record: “The Cumberland Historic Preservation 

Commission exists pursuant to Section 11 of the City of Cumberland Municipal Zoning 

Ordinance.  Members are appointed by the Mayor and City Council and shall possess 

a demonstrated special knowledge or professional or academic training in such fields 

as history, architecture, architectural history, planning, archeology, anthropology, 

curation, conservation, landscape architecture, historic preservation, urban design 

or related disciplines.  The Commission strives to enhance quality of life by 

safeguarding the historical and cultural heritage of Cumberland.  Preservation is 

shown to strengthen the local economy, stabilize and improve property values, and 

foster civic beauty.  The Cumberland Historic Preservation Commission operates 

pursuant to State of Maryland 1977 Open Meetings Act and therefore no pending 

applications shall be discussed between or amongst Commissioners outside the public 

hearing to determine the disposition of the application. Please note that the meeting 

is recorded and that digital signatures are on file from the Chairperson, Vice 

Chairperson, and Secretary for utilization in project determinations.” 

  

Chairperson Dr. Stephen Gibson introduced the Commission members present and 



2 
 

staff.   

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Minutes for February 10, 2021 were approved as written.  Mr. Chris    

Myers made the motion to approve and Dr. Lincoln Wilkins Jr. seconded 

the motion; all members were in favor, motion approved. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 There were no public comments.  

CONSENT AGENDA  

1.  COA21-000003 – 157 Baltimore Street – Four Axes – Applicant Ambra 

Hostetler is requesting a Directional Sign that will be flush mounted and 

measure 26” x 78”; the glass in the area above the side entrance door 

where the decal sign is to be placed measures.  The Building sign will 

measure 81 5/8” x 172 7/8”and will be illuminated with goose neck lights.  

Dr. Michael Garrett made the motion to approve the consent agenda 

and Dr. Lincoln Wilkins Jr. seconded the motion.  Vote was 5-0; Tim 
Hoffman and Larry Jackson were having technical difficulties and were not 
heard when the vote was taken. 
 

CERTIFICATES OF APPROPRIATENESS 

1. COA21-000004 -3 Pershing Street – Applicant Michael Fetchero- 

Allegany Museum was present to represent the project.  The project 

involved a– review of the after the fact entrance door replacements, soda 

blasting for the removal of patina on the transoms, and replacement of 

door hardware; the applicant also requested consideration for future soda 

blasting of the exterior light posts, window replacement on the back of 

the building  and door opener installation.     

      Mr. Fetchero said they would like to have a grand reopening on April 17,  

      2021.  They will have a traveling Smithsonian exhibit to appear in the ball  

      room.  

               Discussion was held concerning the Maryland Historical Trust having an  

      easement on the property and whether they had been notified about the 

current project, and whether a review had been completed   

 



3 
 

      Ms. Suzanne Wright made the motion to approve COA21-000004 for    

    the Allegany Museum at 3 Pershing Street with the exception of the     

    soda blasting of the light posts and fixtures with staff a process that 

is less harmful to the        original metal of the light post.  She noted 

that the building is contributing and and that the          motion is 

pursuant to Guidelines 1, 6, 23, 29, 37 and Appendix A.          Mr. Tim 

Hoffman seconded the motion for approval. 

Additional discussion took place which resulted in Ms. Wright changing her motion 

to ask the owners to find a reasonable solution, working with Kathy McKenney.  

Tim Hoffman seconded the amended motion. 

 

During discussion, Lincoln Wilkins requested that a motion could be made to 

request that the amendment be put on hold until the Maryland Historical Trust 

reviewed the project as part of the easement review.  His motion failed for 

lack of a second. 

 

A vote was called on Ms. Wright’s amended motion with a second.  The motion 

passed with Chris Myers, Michael Garrett, Suzanne Wright voting in favor and 

Councilwoman Marchini, and Lincoln Wilkins voting against. 

 Vote was 4-2      motion approved. 

 

  

 

OTHER BUSINESS/STAFF UPDATES 

1. Ms. McKenney provided areminder that she sent an email out that the she can 

assist in registering anyone who might want to attend the National Main 

Street                       Conference.they are offering it this year in a virtual 

environment and the training funds have been awarded by the Maryland 

Historical Trust are applicable for attendance in it.  The date it will be held 

is April 12-14.   

 

2. Ms. McKenney thanked Councilwoman Marchini for helping to arrange a 

meeting with the Mayor on the previous Friday  

 



4 
 

3.  Ms. McKenney reported that she had been asked by the Maryland Historical 

Trust to help with Historic Preservation Advocacy Day with Congressman 

Trone. 

 

4. Ms. McKenney advised that the procedure for requesting new projects or 

funding requests has been updated and must be approved by the Mayor and 

City Council before proceeded. 

 

5.   An audio of tonight’s meeting is available upon request. 

 

ADJOURMENT 

  Mr. Tim Hoffman made the motion to adjourn and Dr. Lincoln Wilkins Jr. 

seconded the motion.  All members were in favor; motion approved. 

       Respectfully, 

        

 

       Mr. Tim Hoffman, Secretary 

       April 14, 2021 



File Attachments for Item:

2. 217 North Mechanic Street – RCA21-000004 – relocation of the playground for Humpty Dumpty 

along with a ramp that will provide access, Jane Belt, applicant



  

 

 



 

 

 

Proposed New Location for Playground and Access Ramp 

  



  

New Playground Location 

  



 

 

Proposed Playground Layout 





 

 







 



 

 

Request for Change Amendment Application 

Presentation of Information 

By Kathy McKenney 

 

RCA#21-000004 

COA#20-000014 

Business Name: Humpty Dumpty Learning Center 

Address: 217 North Mechanic Street 

Project Contact: Jane Belt 

 

 

Project Summary The original Certificate of Appropriateness was approved in December 2020 for the installation of a fence.  

The applicant, Humpty Dumpty Learning Center, is currently seeking approval to relocate their playground from the existing 

site on the right-hand side of the former church to a new site.  The proposed new site is shown on the attached site plan and 

would be located within a paved area that was previously used for parking.  There would be no disturbance to any existing 

structure and would not disturb any ground that had not been previously impacted by the pavement.   

 

A site plan of the layout of the playground has also been attached as have details concerning a new ramp that will need to be 

constructed in order to provide access from the learning center to the playground. The contractor for the applicant has 

provided plan view sketches in order to show how the ramp system will be constructed by showing the cross sections.     

 

Although there is not a specific guideline pertaining to playgrounds, individual Guidelines are pertinent to the overall 

undertaking. 

 

The sections of the Preservation Guidelines that pertain to this application are Guideline 6: Safety Codes and Handicap 

Access (Chapter 5 Page 69); Guideline 65: Landscaping (Hard Scape) (Chapter 5 Page 114) 

 

 



File Attachments for Item:

3. 222 Washington Street – COA21-000006 – Request to replace porch components, including, railings, 

balustrade, and spindles to appear closer to evidence from a 1920s postcard.  Porch roof is to be repaired, 

along with soffit and fascia, Ray Beall, applicant



 

 

  



 

W. Raymond Beall 

208 Decatur St 

Cumberland, MD 21502 

301-697-3857 

 

March 29, 2021 

 

 

 

Ms. Kathy McKenney 

Historic Planner/Preservation Coordinator 

Cumberland Historic Board 

57 N Liberty St 

Cumberland, MD 21502 

Kathy.mckenny@cumberlandmd.gov 

 

 Re: 222 Washington Street, Cumberland, MD 

 

Ms. McKenney: 

 

 I am writing to you as a follow up to our conversation last week concerning the Queen Anne style late 

Victorian era property we recently acquired at 222 Washington Street.  I am going to break this down into two 

(2) parts for ease of your review. 

 

 First, as related to the front porch roof, it is in dire need of repair. Upon inspection, it is obvious that it 

had been repaired before at some point in time but was patched with subpar materials and painted to match. 

That repair obviously did not hold up. We are repairing this roof leak correctly by removing the patched 

aluminum and caulking, replacing the hidden gutter with handcrafted copper hidden gutters and replacing the 

sagging/rotted soffit and fascia boards beneath. 

 

 Second, we are “updating” back to the original as much as possible the exterior facade. As you can see 

from the attached photos, much of the original architectural charm was destroyed during previous renovations.  

The photos that have been attached from the early 1900’s are from the collection of Albert Feldstein who 

graciously looked into his archives for us. We are using these photos as reference for the renovation project. The 

original porch columns remain and there are clear indications of the original height of the porch railings as well 

as the placement of the brackets attached to their tops along the porch soffit. We are removing the panels that 

now surround the porch and are replacing them with custom made handrails and balustrade.  Matching handrails 

will also be added to each side of the steps for safety reasons. We are also replacing the brackets/gingerbread 

that were removed from the tops of the porch columns.  The indoor/outdoor carpet will disappear from the steps 

and porch. 

 

 A complete repainting job of all exterior woodwork will be undertaken and we have chosen colors from 

the Victorian era color palette (Sherwin Williams) that are unlike any others on the block so as not to compete. 

Retaining a cream color that evidently has always in some shade been on the house with the color of Roycroft 

Vellum, we will be accenting with Rockwood Dark Green, Rockwood Amber, and Rockwood Red to  

emphasize the architectural details. 

 

  

 

Page 2                     

mailto:Kathy.mckenny@cumberlandmd.gov


 

 The hedges planted in front of the porch during the last renovation are being removed and the area will 

be planted with perennials and evergreens prevalent during the Victorian era. Some, but not all will be: 

foxglove, liatris, hollyhock, columbine, bleeding heart, lavender, thyme, tree hydrangea and coneflower.  An 

existing gas line will be replaced and a new gas light will be installed at the front, left corner of the sidewalk 

with an iron rail cage surrounding it. That area will be planted with fountain grass and clematis. 

 

 Steve Wilkinson (220 Washington St) approached me about installing a gate at the top of the steps 

between our two buildings. It seems that the stairway has become a short cut to Greene Street as well as a 

bathroom. To that end, we will be installing and iron gate at both the top and bottom of the steps. 

 

 If you have any questions or need further information please contact me at the number listed above. 

 

 

 

Regards, 

 

 

 

W. Raymond Beall 

 

  

 

 
 



 

2020 File Photo 

  



 

Photo Submitted by Applicant 

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

Historic Postcard Provided with the Application (Property is 

Located Second In From the Right Hand Side of the Image)  

 



 

 

Historic Postcard Provided with the Application (Property is 

Located Second In From the Right Hand Side of the Image)  

  



 

 

 

  Installation Location of Proposed Gate 

  



 

Example of Style of Gate That Would Be Installed 

  



 

Alternative Gate Style Proposed by Applicant 





 





 

    Existing Exterior Appearance 

 



 

   Proposed Paint Colors (Sherwin Williams) 

  



 

Digital Rendering with Proposed Paint Colors Added 

 

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

National Park Service Preservation Brief # 45 









































 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Certificate of Appropriateness Application 

Presentation of Information 

By Kathy McKenney 

 

COA#21-000006 

Address: 222 Washington Street 

Project Contact: Ray Beall 

 

 

 

Project Summary  

The new owner of this property has identified some work that he would like to complete, some of which is intended to 

replace previously removed architectural details and other will help to provide needed upkeep.  Most of the proposed 

work will take place related to the various components of the front porch.   

 

According to the most recently updated district survey, this structure is considered “contributing” to the Canal Place 

Preservation District.  The survey documents that the structure was constructed c. 1900 in the Queen Anne/Stick Style 

which accounts partially for why this structure is not necessarily as ornate as other Queen Anne structures.  Essentially it 

seems to pull design elements into almost a hybrid of both styles.  

 

The applicant has received a copy of a historic post card, a scan of which has been included in this application.  Different 

details to the front porch can be observed on these post cards which, if true to the appearance of this structure in the 

1920s, show balustrades and spindles on the front porch that no longer exist.  The historic postcards are not necessarily 

photographs, especially since color film was not available until a few decades later.  

 

I have searched through older permits and could not ascertain when these modifications took place but it does appear, 

however, that the structure had two, then later three, apartments within it in the 1970s. There does appear to be visible 

evidence of removed components when viewing these existing features. The applicant intends to replicate these 

features, using wood.  

 

The applicant has provided a narrative of the scope of work.  He has proposed to remove previous porch roof repairs, 

which have failed and are causing damage through water infiltration, and correcting the issues by installing handcrafted 

copper hidden gutters.  Since the soffit and fascia has been damaged, they are to be replaced.  The applicant has not yet 

confirmed the materials that will be used to replace the soffit and fascia.   

 



The applicant has provided a color palette for painting but has not yet detailed how those colors are to be applied.  The 

colors are all from the Sherwin Williams line and include Roycroft Vellum, accenting with Rockwood Dark Green, 

Rockwood Amber, and Rockwood Red.  He confirmed by email that he does not intend to paint the unpainted brick. I 

have inserted that email here:  

 

Re: 222 Washington Street Questions 
Inbox 

 
R Bell 
 

Tue, Mar 30, 11:53 
PM (7 days ago) 

 

 

 
to me 

 
 

Kathy, 
 
I will forward you a picture later today of the walkway area between our building and Steve 
Wilkinson's building showing where the gate will be located. There is not a manufacturer's cut sheet 
or other specs for the gate. We are trying to obtain an old, original iron gate, circa early 1900's.   
 
As to the brick, we are absolutely NOT painting it because it is unpainted and has been repointed. 
 
When it comes to the point that we remove the carpeting from the porch (which may not be this 
spring) the floor will be painted in one of the colors of the palette we have given you. 
 
The handrails, spindles, and brackets will be wood. Although we do not have a mock-up of the 
spindles, as can be seen on the one photograph, they were originally round, thin, and curved and we 
are going to replicate that. We are custom making these. The height of the original railing and of the 
brackets can clearly be seen on the original posts that are still there. Picture will follow.  
 
As to the missing design elements, I was referring to the original railing and brackets that were 
removed. It is obvious from the photos that there was nothing overly ornate on the building.    
 
The porch roof is not being replaced, only repaired. The hidden gutter is being replaced with 
custom hidden copper gutter.  
 
    Thanks,  
Ray Beall 
 

 

222 Washington Street Questions 

 
Kathy McKenney <kathy.mckenney@cumberlandmd.gov> 
 

Mar 30, 2021, 10:01 
AM (7 days ago) 

 

 

 
to R 

 
 

Good Morning, 
 



I am glad to see that you were successful in getting the application for the Certificate of 
Appropriateness started.  In reviewing what you have entered so far, I wanted to see if you could 
provide a few additional details and specifications in order to complete the request.   
 
Could you provide a site plan to show the location where the gate will be located?  Also, could you 
provide a manufacturer's cut sheet or a photo of the design specifications (including materials) for the 
gate? 
 
Also, could you provide the design specifications to be used (including materials) for the handrails, 
porch roof, balustrade and spindles, as well as the brackets? 
 
In terms of the missing design elements, I could not tell from the post card or from any visible 
evidence today that there were any decorative elements along the porch, such as dentil 
moulding.  Did you have any other evidence that this might have existed?  It is possible that it was not 
too ornate because it seems to be a bit of a combination of Queen Anne and Stick Style (which 
tended not not be very ornate) 
 
Additionally, what are your plans for the porch decking once the carpet has been removed?  I thought 
it might be helpful to know that it appears that the current carpeting was approved by the Historic 
Preservation Commission back in 2013. 
 
Do you intend to propose to paint the brick facade?  I'm wondering if the postcard's artist used some 
artistic license in showing it painted because there does not appear to be much evidence that paint 
has been removed but perhaps they were pretty meticulous about it.  
 
Thanks for your help with this additional information. 
 
Kathy 
 

Additionally, the applicant has indicated in the submitted scope of work that a new gas line will replace the existing one 

and a “new gas light will be installed at the front, left corner of the sidewalk with an iron rail cage surrounding it”.  The 

applicant has not yet provided the product and material specifications for this fixture. There does not appear to be 

one shown in the postcards that were submitted.  

 

The applicant will also remove exiting landscaping in front of the porch and will plant evergreens and perennials which 

will include “ foxglove, liatris, hollyhock, columbine, bleeding heart, lavender, thyme, tree hydrangea and coneflower”.  

Since these are not to be located in the public right of way, these plantings do not require review by the Historic 

Preservation Commission as detailed in Guideline 64. 

 

The sections of the Preservation Guidelines that pertain to this application are Guideline 3: 

Restore Significant Historic Features (Chapter 5 Page 67); Guideline 5: Context Sensitive New 

Design (Chapter 5 Page 69); Guideline 13: General Painting Approaches (Chapter 5 Page 74); 

Guideline 14: Determining a Color Scheme (Chapter 5 Page 75); Guideline 20: Gutters and 

Downspouts (Chapter 5 Page 80)Guideline 33: Restore Historic Porch Features (Chapter 5 

Page 89); Guideline 54: Building Lighting (Chapter 5 Page 107); Guideline 64: Landscaping 

(Softscape)(Chapter 5 Page 114) 

For some additional guidance, I have added the National Park Service Preservation Brief #45: Preserving Historic 

Wood Porches. 



File Attachments for Item:

4. 66-72 Pershing Street – RCA21-000003 – Request for a Change Amendment to COA #870 to install 

new signage and to review “after the fact” window replacement on the second floor of the back of the 

structure (facing Merchants Alley), Christopher Hendershot (CG Enterprises LLC) applicant.



  



 

 

 

 



 

The windows that have been replaced were the nine 

located on the second floor 





 

  





 





 

  



 

 

  



 

 

Request for Change Amendment Application 

Presentation of Information 

By Kathy McKenney 

 

RCA#21-000003 

COA# 870 (May 2019) 

Business Name (If Applicable) 

Address: 66 Pershing Street 

Project Contact: Christopher Hendershot 

 

 

 

Project Summary: The original Certificate of Appropriateness from 2019 included the approval of new 

signage for the other storefronts at this location, along with the removal of an awning.  The current 

request for a Change Amendment is two-fold.  The first component is related to the “after the fact” 

review of nine windows that were replaced on the second floor of the structure adjacent to Merchants 

Alley.  Since this is a public right of way, the review of this work is within the purview of the Historic 

Preservation Commission. 

 

Photographs have been included that demonstrate the condition of the windows prior to their removal.  

Each window had a wood sash and each was a one over one double hung window.  Each window was 

replaced with a one over one double hung vinyl unit which was manufactured by Sprouse.  Some 

screenshots from their online product page have been included. It does not appear that the size of any 

window opening has been altered.  

 

The second component of the request is for a review of new signage for a new business at the #66 

storefront.  The signage consists of vinyl decals that will be placed inside the storefront window and in 

the upper glass panel of the storefront entrance door.  A hanging sign that will be placed above the front 

entrance door, attached to a metal bracket, and installed into the front brick façade has also been 

requested.  There has not been a request for lighting related to this sign.  As with similar installations, 

the applicant should be encouraged to use the mortar joints, not the brick, to attach the sign.   

 

 

The sections of the Preservation Guidelines that pertain to this application are Guideline 22: Retain 

Historic Windows (Chapter 5 Page 82); Guideline 23: Replacement Windows (Chapter 5, Page 82); 

Guideline 46: Sign Placement; Guideline 47: Sign Size (Chapter 5, Pages 102-103); Guideline 49: New 

Sign Materials (Chapter 5 Page 104) 



File Attachments for Item:

5. 66-72 Pershing Street – Part 2 application review for the purposes of obtaining a recommendation for 

real estate property tax credits as well as a property tax assessment freeze, CB Enterprises, LLC, 

applicants
























































































































































































	Top
	1.	APPROVAL OF MINUTES (March 10, 2021)
	HPC Completed Minutes 03-10-21B

	2.	217 North Mechanic Street – RCA21-000004
	217NCentreStRCA21-000004

	3.	222 Washington Street – COA21-000005
	222WashingtonStCOA21-000006

	4.	66-72 Pershing Street – RCA21-000003
	RCA21-00000366PershingSt

	5.	66-72 Pershing Street
	66PershingTaxPacket

	6.	Staff/Chairperson Updates
	7.	May 2021 Historic Preservation Virtual Summit
	8.	Administrative Approvals Report
	Bottom

